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The Henry Baker house was built in the tradition of the country homes 
found throughout Ohio which were built/ during the first half of the 
19th Century. These house were Coldnial and were eepie4—after the 

post-colonial homes found throughout the eastern seaboarid states.

The Henry Baker home is unique because of its stark un-Victorian 
architecture and because its is one of the few buildings still standing 
in the state used as stage coach stops during the 1850's. It was built 
in 1855 from bricks kilned on the site. Most of the lumber used to 
trim the house is walnut and was also probably cut from native timber. 
(There are still standing nearby barns with solid walnut beams -- put 
together with wooden pegs.)

The brick structure on the exterior has had only two minor alterations— 
a side porch on the rear, and a new front porch. A new chimney (evident 
in the attached photographs) built during the^l930's is in the process 
of being torn down. The original chimney on that side of the house 
is being restored.

Originally the home had three fireplaces. Onerinteresting feature in 
the architecture is the way that channels for the chimneys begin at 
two separate points at the base of the house, and flow gently to­ 
gether atop a gothic window at the peak of the room to form a chimney 
at each end of the rectangular house. (The gothic window is the only 
curved line found in the exterior architecture.) The third chimney 
from the kitchen fireplace echoes the two atop the house.

Of the three fireplaces, two still remain—one needs to be restored. 
The huge keeping room fireplace extends across the entire north wall 
of the room, with a warming oven, and a wood storage spot below. 
A marble slab decorates the fireplace in the living room, the only 
marble in the entire house.

The large dining room on the first floor has been made slightly smaller 
with the addition of a bathroom at one end--otherwise the floor plan 
of the entire house is presently intact. The downstairs consists of 
the kitchen (keeping room), the dining room, and three other rooms, 
at least one of which was probably used for overflow sleeping accomo- 
dations.

Upstairs there are four tiny rooms, barely large enough for double 
beds, a hugb room which came to be used for a community ballroom, 
and a tiny backroom v/ith ceilings plastered over the rootEIine. 
On the third floor there are two rooms also plastered over the roof- 
line which were no doubt used for sleeping accomdations when necessary.

In the past year articles about the house haVecappeased in the Dubuque 
and Waterloo papers. One of these is attached. Also attached is an 
article from the Cedar Rapids paper printed in 1928.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

According to histories of Delaware county, Coffin's Grove was named for 
Clement Coffin who settled there in 1840--at the time 10 miles further 
west than any other pioneer. The next year his son-in-law Henry Baker 
joined him.

The Henry Baker house was built in 1853xto accomodate the overflow 
visitors who were stopping over on their way west -- their numbers 
swelled By the Gold Rush. Not only did the house serve as a^Jjotel and 
postxtfffice, but its huge second floor room served as a dance hall^-"^ 
and gatherine/place for natives of the area for a good many years.

The house is presently located on a gravel road between Masonville 
and Manchester, but at the time the house was built this was the main 
thoroughfare west.

The architecture of the house is very unusual to find this far west. 
Although records are not complete, it is possible that Henry Baker 
and his father-in-law built the house, copying it after the post- 
revolutionary homes found in the east.

There are few if any stagecoach stops in loxva which come close to
rivaling the Baker'House architecture. And it is highly unlikely 

that any house in the state which may have been built as early 
remains as close to its original ,£loor plan as this house. Only a 
bathroom has bean added to what was the dining room on the first floor.

4 <.- . « : -C 
From the limestone foundation, no doubt -wined on the property, to
the bricks which were kilned here, the entire house represents the 
best of pioneer craftsmanship.

In addition, there are remnants of barns built in 1849 onaa one-day 
barn raising—the first frame barns in the county. These barns were 
made with walnut beams, put together with wooden pegs. An old lime­ 
stone foundation with these beams and pegs still stands across the 
road from the Baker house.

The Henry Baker house was a beehive of community activity during the 
third quarter of the 19th century. Settlers came from miles around 
to hunt prairie chickens on the property. Circuses, fairs and community 
gatherings took place here frequently.



1. Merry, Capt. John F., History of Delaware County, The S. J. 
Clarke Publishing Company, 1914, vol. I, The History of Coffins 
Grove Township, pp. 285-288.

2. The History of Delaware County, Iowa; Chicago, Western Historical 
Company, pp. 378, 555-556.
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na­ 
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion 
in the National Register and certify that it has been 
evaluated according to the c-iteria and procedures set 
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended 
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